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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Membets of Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Travel News Services (India) Private
Limited (the ‘Company’), which compiise the Balance Sheet as at 31 Match, 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2020, and total comprehensive loss, its changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Aundit of the Financial Statements sectdon of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accotdance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requitements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report theteon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comptrises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board’s Repott, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statetnents, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit ot otherwise appeats to be matetially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report, if we conclude that thete is a material misstatement therein, we are
tequited to communicate the mattet to those charged with governance.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act fead with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standatds) Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors eithet intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually ot in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errot, design and perform audit procedutes responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 2 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ertor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreptesentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we ate also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we ate required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
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to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. [However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fait presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditot’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Otder’) issued by the Centtal
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexute A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we repott that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audig,

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report ate in
agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS notified under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time
to time;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with tefetence to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our sepatate report in
Annexute-B’;

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Repott in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and accotding to the explanations given to us:



L The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refet Note 39 to the financial statements;

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
wete any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March, 2020; and

1id. Thete were no amounts which wete requited to be transfetred to the Investor Educaton and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March, 2020.

For SGSR & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: N500044

Q;xg T

g':mdeep Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 509750
UDIN: 20509750AAAABX7569

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 july, 2020



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of the independent auditors’ report of even date on the financial statements of Travel News
Services (India) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2020)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purposc of reporting a true and fait view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other recotds examined by us in the notmal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we tepott that

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) As explained to us, the property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the
management once in a period of three years, which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its property, plant and equipment. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of ‘property, plant and
equipments’). Accotdingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) (c) of the Order are not applicable.

(i1) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical
inventoty and book records wete noticed on physical verification.

(ii1) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(ii1)(a), 3(ii1) (b} and 3(1ii)(c)
of the Ourder are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transactions covered under Section 185 and
186 of the Act in respect of loans and security. Further, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investment and guarantees given.

) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order ate not applicable.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/services. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Otder are not applicable.

(vi)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income -
tax, goods and service tax, sales-tax, setvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regulatly
deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end

for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 1,749.08, that have not been deposited on
account of matters pending in appeals before appropriate authorities are as under: However
Security deposit of Rs 31,76,265 has been deposited- whether to be included or not

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where
the Statute the dues (Rs. in which the dispute is
lakhs) amount pending
relates
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(viii)

(ix)

Haryana  Value Value Added | 2.22 AY. 2015-16 VAT Authorities.

Added Tax Act. Tax (VAT)

Maharashtra Value Added 16.98 AY 2013-14 Commissionet

Value Added Tax Tax (VAT) of sale Tax

Act. Appeal (I11)
Mumbai VAT

Income Tax Act, Income Tax 1,698.12 AY.2017-18 The

1961 Commissioner of
Income Tax

| ppealyy

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution, bank or
¥ gs pay
government and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid by the Company in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act tead with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accotdingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties ate in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial staternents
etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any prefetential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or
persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For SGSR & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: N500044

Sandeep Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 509750

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 July, 2020
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referted to in paragraph 3.0 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of the independent auditors’ teport of even date on the financial statements of Travel
News Services (India) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2020)

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repotting of Travel News Services
(India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Company
consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
IFCoFR issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errots, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘(ICAD’) and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Repotting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assutance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves petforming procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effecuveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operatng effecuveness of intetnal control based on the assessed tisk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.,

Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide teasonable assurance that



transactions are recorded as necessary to penmit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authotisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventon or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror ot fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods ate subject to the risk
that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies ox procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In out opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all matetial respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SGSR & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: N500044

Qﬁ o

Sandeep Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 509750
UDIN: 20509750AAAABX7569

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20 July, 2020



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2020

(All amounts i T lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 503.87 62170
Right-of-use-assets 3(b) 10,078.15
Capital work in progress 3(c) 2803 712
Totangible assets 3(d) 1.79 1164
Financial assets
- Investments 4 272.55 27255
- Loans 3(a) 1,471.97 1,3149
- Other non-curient financial assets 5(b) 29847 30049
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,24076 479 47
Non-current tax asscts (net) 7 390.90 230.17
Other non-current assets 8 24525 411.37
14,571.74 3,649.42
Current assets
Inventories L 96999 1,273.20
Financial asscts
- Trade receivables 10 72491 956.52
- Cash and cash equivalents 11 129.05 23352
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 37425 345
- Loans 13(a) 8155 5783
- Other current financial assets 13(b) 871 3487
Other current assets 14 86257 48619
3,151.03 3,045.58
17,722.77 6,695.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15.3) 414.42 41442
Other equity 16 (1,030.14) 1,494.56
(615.72) 1,908.98
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,39292 1,232.67
Lease liabilities 40 9,93547
Other non-current financial liabilities 18 29360 254.05
Other non-cucrent liabilitics 19 8245 7042
Provisions 20 128 56 63,59
11,833.00 1,620.73
Current liabilities
Financial liabilites
Lease liabilities 40 3,29293
Trade payables 21
- Total outstanding due of micro and small enterprises 58.68 2902
- Total outstanding duc of creditors other than miceo and small enterprises 1,749.01 2,020 38
Other current financial lizbilitics 22 1,148.65 96203
Other cucrent liabilities 23 253.87 152,70
Provisions 24 235 116
- 6,505.49 3,165.29
17,722.77 6,695.00

The accompanying nates form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For SGSR & CO LLP
Chattered Accountings
Fiem's Registation Moo NSO

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

o Rk

e ol \
\s ¥ K
(Ssndeep Gupta) Sunil Mantri Ritesh Raja
Partner, - Managing Director Director

Membership No. 509750

Place: New Delhi
Date : 20 July, 2020

DIN No. 02082403

Mukul Kumar Jain

NNy

Chicf Financial Officer

DIN No 08650272 ¢

-u.uﬁ

Company Secretary

Membership No 28492
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(M amounts w3 laes, wakiess sred ortherwise)
N For the year ended For the year ended
ates 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
REVENUE
Revenuce from operations 25 16,741.61 15,83563
Othcer income 26 23019 248 (6
Total Revenues 16,971.80 16,083.69
EXPENSES
Purchase of stock-in-trade 27 7,90407 8,101 82
Changes in inventorics of stock-in-trade 28 30321 (87.65)
Lmployce benefits expense 29 1,307.96 1,207 36
Finance costs 30 1,668.02 41375
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 3,570.88 29156
Other expenses 32 2,801.18 6,578.33
Total expenses 17,645.32 16,505.17
Loss before tax (673.52) (421.48)
Tax expense 33
Deferred tax (82.05) (481.01)
Total tax expense (82.05) (481.01)
(Loss) / Profit for the year ’ (591.47) 59.53
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on post employment benefit obligations (21.13) 592
Income tax effect on above 549 (154
Total other comprehensive (loss) / i (15.64) 4.38
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (607.11) 63.91
Earnings per share (in X) 34
Basic and Diluted (1427) 1.44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our teport i
For SGSR & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fam's Regatration No, N500044

(
A
(S::iidcrp Gupita)
Pattner

Membership Mo 500750

Plage: New Jv.ﬂl‘r
Date : 20 July, 2020

For and on behalf of the board of ditectors of
Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

(g

Sunil Mantri
Managing Director
DIN No. 02082403

M

Mukul Kumar Jain
Chief Financial Officer

Rleoh Tys

Ritesh Raju
Dieetor
DIN No (186 A

i Blinsal
Company Secretary
Membership No 28492



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated othenwise)

Amount

A. Equity share capital

Balance as on 01 April, 2018 414.42
Changes in cquity share capital during the year -
Balance as on 31 March, 2019 / 01 April, 2019 414,42

_—

Changes in cquity share capital during the year

Balance as on 31 March, 2020 414.42
B. Other equity

Other comprehensive
Particulars Deemed equity Securfucs i e Retained Earnings Total
premium Remeasurement of
Defined Benefit Plans

Balance as on 01 April, 2018 - 2,465.39 4,70 (3,207.64) (737.55)
Profit for the year : 5953 59.53
Other comprchensive gain for the year (net of tax) , 438 4.38
Equity componcnt of fully cumulative non 2,168.20 . 2,168.20
convertible redeemable preference shares

Balance as on 31 March, 2019 2,168.20 2.465.39 9.08 (3, 14811 149450
Less: Adjustment on adoption of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) - - - (1,917.59) (1,917.59)
(Refer Note 2 b.11)

Balance as on 1 April, 2019 2,168.20 2,465.39 9.08 (5,065.70) (423.03)
Loss for the year (591.41) (591.47)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (net of tax) - (15.64) - (15.64)
Balance as on 31 March, 2020 2,168.20 2,465.39 (6.56) (5,657,17) (1,030.14)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors of
For SGSR & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. N500044

O A A
_‘(-.kllﬂﬁ::t'@ta)

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

: “Kiedh R

Sunil Mantri Ritesh Raja
Partner o Managing Director Dircctor
Membership No. 509750 DIN No. 02082403 DIN No 08650272 -
Place: New Delhi Mukul Kumar Jain Surl iD{
Date : 20 July, 2020 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No.28492



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwisc)

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before income tax (673.52) (421.48)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expensc 3,570.88 29156
Finance costs 1,666 .27 41177
Gain on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment 074 (138)
Property, plant and equipment written off 382
Bad debts 614 422
Impairement for loss allowances - debts and advances +4 9.13
Interest income (159 93) (136 35)
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 4,413.51 161.29
Working capital adjustments
Movement in inventories 30321 (87.65)
Movement in trade cecervables and loans 31118 (738.59)
Movement in other financial assets 2776 (17.68)
Movement in other assets (367.13) (185.00)
Movement in trade payables and other financial labilities (89.35) 311.10
Movement in other liabilites 94.80 31.36
Movement in provisions 45.03 23.46
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 4,739.01 (501.71)
Income taxes paid (net) (160.73) (110.55)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (A) 4,578.28 (612.26)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (130.78) 94,70
(Investment in) /proceeds from margin money deposits (net) (350 00) (11734
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1209 426
Interest income 287 254
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (465.82) (15.84)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings - (2,434.51)
Procecds from issue of cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares 3,400.00
Interest paid ' (199.94)
Payment of principal portion of leasc liabilities (2,744.73)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities (1.472.20) .
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) (4,216.93) 765.55
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (104 47) 13745
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 233.52 96.07
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 129.05 233.52
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
—— For the year ended For the year ended
S 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11) 129.05 233,52,
Balance as per statement of cash flows (as per above) —— 129.05 233.52
= oNICE
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Allamounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwisc)

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows”

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

FFor and on behalf of the board of dicectors of
Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Rieh R

Ritesh Raj
Director
DIN No 08650272 %

This is the Statemnent of Changes in Equity referred to in our report uf vven date
For SGSR & CO LLP GBS 77
Chartered Accountants

Fiom's Registration No. N500044

G

{

Sunil Mantri
Managing Director
DIN No (02082403

= — 7
e \\‘\ Surbhi Bansal

Mukul Kumar Jain
Date : 20 July, 2020 Chicf Financial Officer Company Sccretary
Membership No 28492

(Sandeep Gupta)
Mirtnor
Mepbeship Moo 5057500

-~

Place: Mew [elln
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

Corporate information

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 29 June, 2009. The Company retails
books, confectionery, food, beverages and accessories etc. and is primarily engaged in the business of operating retail
shops at various places in India. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Future Retail Limited (w.e.f. 11 May,
2018) and running its outlet under the brand name of WH Smith. On 11 May, 2018, Future Retail Limited had acquired
100% shareholding of the Company from ADD Advisors Private Limited and other sharcholders. Hence, the Company
has become deemed public company from the transaction date.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2020 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for
issue on 20 July, 2020.

Basis for Preparation and Significant accounting policies
Basis for preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (
as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements have been prepared on
accrual and going concern basis. All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-curtent as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other critetia as set out in Division II of Schedule ITI to the Companies Act, 2013.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or net realizable value as applicable.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also its functional currency and all
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lacs as per the requirement
of Schedule 11T to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Newly effective standard adopted by the Company (tecent accounting pronouncement)
Ind AS 116 — Leases

During the year, Ind AS 116 — Leases (the ‘Standard’), has become cffective from 1st April, 2019, replacing the existing
Ind AS 17 - Leases.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of the Standard, the Company has not restated the comparative information,
but has recognized the cumulative effect of its initial application as an adjustment to opening Retained Earnings at the
date of initial application i.e. 1st April, 2019 by using modified retrospective method. Adjusted opening balances as at
01t April, 2019 are disclosed under note no. 40.

The lease liabilities were discounted using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1st April, 2019. In the reporting period,
the first-time application of Ind AS 116 meant that rental / lease expenses were replaced by depreciation charges on
tight-of-use assets and interest expenses. Refer to Note 2.(b).(xii) for accounting policy followed by Company in respect
of accounting of lease.

Current versus non-curtent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

1. Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
ii.  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
tv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged o used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
i Ttis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
il.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. Ttis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
petiod

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities and other tax assets are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, if any. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfets control over a product or service
to a customer.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its tevenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all
the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventoty and credit risks.

To determine whether to recognize tevenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the petformance obligations
Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

£ s (ORI g

Identifying the performance obligations

Under Ind AS 115, the Company evaluate the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are
‘distinct’. A promised good or service is ‘distinct’ if both:

e the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
* it is ‘separately identifiable’ (ie. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or
customizing it)

Determining the transaction price

Under Ind AS 115, the Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine
the transaction price. The transaction price means fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns
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and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. GST are not received by the Company on its own account but
collected on behalf of the government and accordingly, are excluded from revenue.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value'to
the customer of the performance completed to date, the Company recognises revenue in the amount to which it has a right

to 1nvoice.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling
price. For services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment

approach.

Recognising tevenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue

can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or setvices to its customers.

The Company detives revenue from sale of goods at retail stores. For transfer of goods, the Company recognise revenue
when the customer obtains the control of goods. This usually happens when the customer gains right to direct the use
of and obtained substantially all benefits from goods i.e. on delivery of goods to the customers at retail stores.

Interest income:

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) as

explained in point (v) below.

Dividends:

Dividend is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders apptrove the dividend.

Rental income

Rental income including from sub leasing arrangements is tecognized on the basis of contractual terms with the parties
except for the cases whercin the rental income is structured to be in line with expected general inflation, then rental
income is recognised on straight line basis over the term of contract.

Service income

Revenue from service-related activities is recognised as and when services ate rendered and on the basis of contractual
terms with the parties.

Financial insttuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.
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Travel News Setvices (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information fot the year ended 31 Matrch, 2020

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value using best estimates. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement the profit and loss.

Financial assets:

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost ot fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are
met:

e financial assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

* contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash teceipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter petiod,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortised cost classification or
are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVIPL upon initial
recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category ate measured at
fair value with gains or losses recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The fair values of financial assets in this
category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique whete no active market
€xi1sts.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQOCI)

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments.
This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Resetve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss on
disposal of the investments. The Company has irrevocably adopted to value its equity investments through FVTOCI.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are tecognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in the statement of profit and loss are included in
the ‘Other income’ line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost and financial asset designated as at FVTOCIL

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occutring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).
The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings ate subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when liabilities are
derecognised. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and
loss.

Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS)

At the issue date the fair value of the liability component of NCRPS is estimated using the market interest rate for a
similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon at the instrument’s redemption date. The equity component is detetmined as the
difference of the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the instrument issued to equity shareholders
of the Company.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a
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part of a financial hability) is derecognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may vary from actual realisation on future date.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Packing and accessoties: At lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents purchase price and other direct
costs and is determined on a “first in, first out” basis.

Traded goods: At lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventoties comptises all costs of purchase price and
other incidental costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
based on first in first out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and to make the sale.

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

PPE and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly atttibutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in atriving at the putchase price. The cost of an item of PPE
shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including
day- to- day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing patts, ate charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss for the year during which such expenses ate incurred. Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is
capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction petiod is capitalized as a patt of indirect construction cost
to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the
construction petiods which are not related to construction activity not are incidental thereto ate charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the written down value method computed on the basis of useful life prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Schedule II’) on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put to use.
Considering the applicability of Schedule IT as mentioned above, in tespect of certain class of assets- the Company has
assessed the useful lives (as mentioned in the table below) lower than as prescribed in Schedule I1, based on the technical
assessment.
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Asset Category Useful life estimated by the Useful life as per Schedule
management based on II (years)
technical assessment (years)
Computers 3 years 3-6 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
Cost of the leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditute incurred in respect of capital projects and are cartied at cost. Cost
comprises of purchase cost, related acquisition expenses, development costs, pre-operating expenses and other direct

expenditure.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at:
In case the assets are acquired separately then at cost,
In case the assets are acquired in a business combination then at fair value.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets ate carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss. Amortisation of Intangible assets is provided on the written down value method computed on the basis
of useful life as assessed by the management i.e. 5 years based on the technical assessment on a pro-rata basis from the
date the asset is ready to put to use.

Gains/(losses) atising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Assets catrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s cartying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting petiod, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets of a
“Cash Generating Unit” (CGU) to determine whether thete is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Individual assets ate grouped for impairment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which there are
identifiable cash flows that are latgely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its cartying amount, the carrying
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

amount of the asset (or cash- generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. The increased carrying amount does not exceed the catrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (ot cash-generating unit) in ptior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition, construction ot production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised upto the period of time that is requited to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for theit intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur or accrue. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement. For arrangements entered into pror to 1 April 2017, the Company has determined whether
the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset primatily consist of leases for building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. 'L'he contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether i) the contract involves use of an identified asset i)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of lease and iii) the
Company has right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right- of- use asset (‘ROU”) at cost and a
cortesponding lease liability for all lease atrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (shott-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the option to extend ot terminate the lease before the end of lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right- of- use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or ptior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct cost less any lease
incentives. They ate subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right- of- use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever event or changes
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in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not genetate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments ate discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease Liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right- of- use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an
extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU have been sepatately presented in the Balance sheet and lease payment have been classified as
financing cash flows.

Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of these lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it account for its interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The
sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from head lease.

For operating lease, rental income is recognized on straight line basis over terms of the relevant lease.
Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments. All investments are carried at fair value.

Dividend
Dividend declared is recognized as a liability only after it is approved by the sharcholders in the general meeting.
Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other funds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment ot a cash refund.

Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using

the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the
Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of tesoutces embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, they are measured
at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet
date on government bonds.
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Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent petiods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit ability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of
profit and loss:

Service costs comprising curfent setvice costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

Net interest expense ot income

Compensated absences

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be catried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the leave as a cutrent liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer
its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual
right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as shott term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Foreign curtency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the reporting cuttency, by applying to the foreign cutrency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign cutrency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a fareign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's monetaty items
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with
relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on untealised tax
loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the undetlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable
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income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and ate recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside
Statement of Profit or Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Segment reporting

Operating segments ate reported in a manner consistent with the internal teporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker, who is tesponsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which ate subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

Provisions

Provisions ate recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the cffect of the ime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence ot non—occurtence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share ate calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the year. The weighted average number
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of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than conversion of potential equity shares, that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requites management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions
are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s expetience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas wherte significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are
described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for
prospectively.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including
legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more
uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Recognition of deferred tax
The extent to which defetred tax asset to be recognized is based on the asscssment of the probability of the future taxable
income against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key soutces of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the cartying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimales on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepated. Existing citcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected

utility of the assets.

Defined benefit obligation

L_.\L i
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The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuasial valuation involves making vatious assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future trends salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. In view of the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Inventories

The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventoties, taking into account the most reliable evidence available
at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future technology ot other market-
driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. Further, the Company also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage,
pilferage etc. along with NRV impact on old inventory taking into account most reliable information available at the
reporting date.

Impairment of assets

In assessing impairment, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on
expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions
about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable matkets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial insttuments.

Measurement of EBIDTA

The Company has elected to present earnings before intetest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate
line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/(loss)
from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
finance costs and tax expense.

Rounding of amounts

All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as pet the
requirement of schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

(.l// :
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(All amounts in Z Jacs, unless stated othenvise)

3(b) : Right-of-use assets

At Cost

As at 1 April, 2019

Adjustments as per Ind AS 116 as at 1 April, 2019 (Refer Note 2 bif)

Additions
Disposal
As at 31 March, 2020

Accumulated amortization
As at 1 April, 2019
Charge for the year

Disposals/adjustments
As at 31 March, 2020

Carrying amount (net)

As at 31 March, 2020

13,381.79

13,381.79

3,303.64

3,303.64

10,078.15

3(c) : Capital work-in-progress

At Cost

As at 1 April, 2018
Additions

Capitalised

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 1 April, 2019
Additions

Capitalised

As at 31 March, 2020

712
7.12

712

28.03
.12

28.03

3(d) : Other intangible assets

At Cost

As at 1 April, 2018
Additions

Disposal

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 1 April, 2019
Additions

Disposal

As at 31 March, 2020

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April, 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals /adjustments
As at 31 March, 2019

As at 1 April, 2019
Chatge for the year
Disposals/adjustments

As at 31 March, 2020

Carrying amount (net)

As at 31 March, 2019

As at 31 March, 2020

/

) ew
ZN

pDeihi | g

Computer Software

99.38

99.38

99.38
0.09

99.47

84.07
367

87.74

87.74
9.94

97.68

11.64

179
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(All amounts in  lacs, unless stated otherwise)

4. Investments

(Valued at cost, unless stated othenwisc)

In equity instruments - Subsidiaries - unquoted - fully paid up
a. TNSI Retail Private Limited”
(18,940,000 (previous ycar 18,940,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each)
b. Welcome Retail Private Limited”
(25,500 (previous year: 25,500) equity shaces of T 10 each

Total

As at
31 March, 2020

270.00

2,55

272.55

* Itincludes shares held by nominee sharcholders on behalf of the Company.

4.1Information about subsidiaries

As at
31 March, 2019

27000

Name of the Company and Country of Incorporation

Principal Activities

Propottionite °
As at
31 Murch, 2020

of Shurcholding
As at
31 March, 2019

Pasnons of rerdl chams,  mnmng
y AT ol : outlets at  Delhi  Metro  Rail " “/
™51 Retaitl Private Limited, India Corporation ("DMRC") metzo stations 100% 100
arriss Delhi/NCR
Scttng-up, development, opcrating,
Welrome Retail Povate Limited, India sub-leasing and managing retail shops 51% 51%
at Al
As at As at
5(a). Loans 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Measured at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 147197 1,314.91
1,471.97 1,314.91
. As at As at
5(b). Other non-current financial assets 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(Measured at amortised cost)
Unsecured, considered good
Margin money deposits with banks against bank guarantees 248.45 269.25
Interest accrued but not due on margin money deposits 50.02 3124
298.47 300.49
As at For the year X As at
6. Deferred tax assets (net) 31 March, 2020 2019-20 Adjustments 31 March, 2019
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
- Provision for Employee benefits 52,20 13.69 3851
- Impairement for doubtful debts 352 115 237
- Depreciation 239.95 17.54 22241
- Right-of-use assets & Lease labilities (Refer Note 2.1 ii) 819.07 145.32 67375
- Unused tax depreciation 11839 (88.22) 206,61
- Others 7.63 (1.94) 957
1,240.76 87.54 673.75 47947
As at As at
7. Non- current tax assets (net) 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 390.90 23017
390.90 230.17
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at 31 March, 2020

(Al amounts in Z lacs, unless stated otherwisc)
8. Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid lease rent

Prepaid expense

Capital advances

9. Inventories

(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, unless stated otherwise)

Packing and accessorics
Traded goods (including stock-in-transit )

10. Trade receivables

Unsccured, considered good
Unsecured, credit impaired
Less : Allowance for doubtful receivables

10.1 Refer note 35(c) for balances held with telated partics

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks - Cucrent accounts
Cash on hand
Deposits with Bank having original maturity less than 3 months

12. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Margin money deposits with banks against bank guarantees
Less: Amount disclosed under non current assets (tefer note 5(b))

Deposits with Bank having original maturity more than 3
months and less than 12 months

13(a). Loans

(Mecasured at amortised cost)

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

13(b). Other current financial assets

(Measured at amortised cost)

Unsecured, considered good

Credit card receivables

Unbilled revenue

Advance to employces against salary

Interest accrued but not due on margin money deposits

As at
31 March, 2020

24815
545
3165

285.25

As at
31 March, 2020

354
966 45

969.99

As at
31 March, 2020

72491

1354
(13 54)
724.91

As at
31 March, 2020

66.61
1244
50.00

129.05

As at
31 March, 2020

27270
(248 45)
2425

350.00

374.25

As ac
31 March, 2020

81.55

81.55

As at
31 March, 2020

043
203
44
1.81

As at
31 March, 2019

38572
1136
1429

411.37

As at
31 March, 2019

As at
31 March, 2019

956.52
913
913

956.52

As at
31 March, 2019

162 64
70 88

233.52

As at
31 March, 2019

272,770

(269 25)
345

As at
31 March, 2019

57.83

57.83

As at
31 March, 2019

26.36
8.29

34.87
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(Al amounts i 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)
14. Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

As at
31 March, 2020

As at
31 Maich, 2019

Prepaid expenses 2037 3875
Prepaid lease tent 12629 12293
Advance to employcees for expenses 460 238
Advance to suppliers 386 89 148.70
Balances with government authoritics - GS1 32442 17343

862.57 486.19
15. Equity

. . . As at As at
(i) Equity share capital 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Authorised
1,00,00,000 (31 March, 2019: 1,00,00,000) cquity shares of 210 cach 1,000.00 1,000 00
1,000.00 1,000.00

Lssued, suhseribed aod fully paid up
41,44,211 (31 Macch, 2019: 41,44,211) equity shares of Z 10 each 41442 414.42

414.42 414.42
a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding:

As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount

At the beginning of the year 4,144 211 414.42 4,144 211 A2
Shares issued during the year - S
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,144,211 414.42 4,144,211 414,42

b) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of cquity shares is entitled to onc vote per share
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting: In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders

c) Shares held by the Holding Company:

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March, 2020

As at 31 March, 2019 |

Nos. I Amount

Nos. ] Amount

Future Retail Limited*

4,144,211 | 114

4,144,211 | 41442

d) Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% cquity shares:

As at 31 March, 2020

As at 31 March, 2019 |

Name of the Shareholder

Nos. % holding

Nos. % holding

lruture Retarl Limnited*

4144211 100%

4144211 1007

* Ttincludes 6 shares held by nomince shaccholders on behalf of Future Retail Limnited

¢) During the previous yeat, 100% shareholding of the Company was being acquired by the Future Retail Limited from ADD Advisors Private

Limited and other sharcholders w.e £. 11 May, 2018

£ As per records of the Company, including register of sharcholder/members regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both

legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(ii) Preference share capital

Authorised

As at
31 March, 2020

35,00,000 (31 Macch, 2019: 35,00,000) 7% Cumulative non-convertible redeemable

preference shares (NCRPS) of T100 each

hseribied ¢ .

3,500.00

3,500.00

aid up.
34,00,000 (31 March, 2019: 34,00,000) Cumulative non-convertible redeemable

preference shares (NCRPS) of 100 cach

v

340000

3,400.00

As at
31 March, 2019

3,500.00

3,500.00

3,400.00

3,400.00
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a) Reconciliation of number of preference shares outstunding:

As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginning of the yeac 340000 3.400.00
Shares issued dunng the year - 3,400,000 30000
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,400,000 3,400.00 3,400,000 3,@0._!&

b) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to preference shares:

The Company has only onc class of preference shares having a par value of T 100 per preference shate. These shares shall carry cumulative 7% dividend and
are redecmable by the Company at the end of 15 years or at any time at the option of the Company after 15 months from the date of allotment of such
shares,

c) Shares held by the Holding Company:

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019 I
Nos. [ Amount Nos. I Amount
Future Retail Limited 3,400,000 | 3400 3,400,000 | 340000 |

d) Details of preference shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares:

As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019 |
Name of the Shareholder Nos. % holding Nos. ] % holding
Future Retail Limited 3,400,000 100% 3,400,000 | 100"/"]
G As at As at
1650t erlequity 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Security premium® 246539 2,465.39
Retained camings® (5.657.17) (3,148.11)
Deemed equity®™ 2,16820 2,168.20
Other comprehensive income®? (6.56) 9.08
(1,030.14) 1,494.56
Description of nature and purpose of reserve
As at As at
(i) Securities premium 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Opening Balance 2,465.39 2,465.39
Closing balance 2,465.39 2,465.39
PR Akl ="

Mature and purpose:

Security premium is created when the Company issue shares at the premium. The aggregate amount of premium received on the shares is
transferred to a separate account called "security premium", The same will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and related provisions. This teserve is carmied forward from earlice yeas,

As at As at
(ii) Retained earnings 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Opening Balance (3,148.11) (3,207.64)
Less: Adjustment on adoption of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) (Refer Note 2 bii) (1,917.59) -
(Loss)/Profit for the year (591.47) 59.53
Closing balance (5,657.17) (3,148.11)

Nature and purpose:

Retained earnings are created from the profit/ (loss) of the Company, 2s adjusted for distcibutions to owners, transfers to other reserves, etc




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
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(Allamounts m T lacs, unless stated otherwise)

(iii) Deemed equity As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Opening balance 2,168.20
Additions during the year y 2,168.20
Closing balance* 2,168.20 2,168.20

* Refer note 17 for further details related to NCRPS

Nature and purpose:
Company had issued Cumulative NCRPS ducing the previous year to Future Retail Limited (the "Holding Company") carrying intcrest rate of 7%
The excess of transaction value over the fair value at the issuc date is recognised as cquity component of Cumulative NCRPS

(iv) Other comprehensive income As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Opening balance 9.08 470
Additions during the year (15.64) 4.38
Closing balance (6.56) 9.08
Total other equity [(i) +(ii)*(iii)+iv)] (1,030.14) 1,494.56
17. Borrowings As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Unsecured, measured as amortised cost
Financial liability part of 7%% cumulative non-convertible

redeemable preference shares (NCRPS) (refer note 17.1) 1,392.92 1,232.67
1,392.92 1,232.67
17.1) 7% Cumulative N vertible Red ble Prefe e Shares ("NCRPS")

The NCRPS carry cumulative dividend right @ 7.00% per annum. The Board reserves the right to pay the dividend subject to the availability of
profit. In casc of loss or inadequacy of profit, dividend will get accumulated and will be paid cumulatively in the year of profit. NCRPS have been
initially recorded at fair value by discounting the cash flow at maturity of instrwments with discount rate. The difference between the transaction
price and fair value of the instruments issued to Future Retail Limited (the holding company) arte treated as “deemed equity”

E— As at As at
18. Other non-current financial liabilities 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Security deposits 293.60 25405
293.60 254.05

PR As at As at
19. Other non-current liabilities 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Advance lease rent 7379 5825
Other payables 8.66 1217
82.45 ) 70.42

20. Provisions — ASia¢
’ v 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Pravision for employee benefits: (Refer note 38)

- Gratuity 7016 3393
- Compensated absences 58.40 29.66

128.56 63.59
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as at 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in Z lacs, unless stated otherwise)
21, Trade payables

(Measured at amortised cost)

Trade payables
Total outstanding duc of micro and small cntcrpriscs'

- . . . . A
Total outstanding due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

*Refer nute 44 fur details vl dues wrsicro aud susll enterprises.
H#Refer note 35(c) for payables to related partics

22, Other current financial liabilides

(Measured at amortised cost)

Creditors for assets
Employee related payables
Accrued expenses
Retention money

Sccurity deposits

Book overdraft

As at
31 March, 2020

58.68
1,749.01

1,807.69

As at
31 March, 2020

69.51
122.60
866.14

5.37

85.03

1,148.65

As at
31 March, 2019

29.02
2,02038

2,049.40

As at
31 March, 2019

1111
108 64
440.10

4.32

32.00

365.86

962.03

22.1 Thete ate no amounts due for payment to the Tovestor Education and Protection Fund under section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on

31 March, 2020 and 31 March, 2019

23. Other current liabilities

Statutory liabilities including GST
Advance from customers
Advance lease rent

Deferred reverue

Other habilities

24, Provisions

Provision for employee benefits: (Refer note 38)
- Gratuity
- Compensated absences

3

As at
31 March, 2020

21448
32,99
281
359
253.87

As at
31 March, 2020

098
137

2.35

As at
31 March, 2019

107.83
858
30.13
265
35

152.70

As at
31 March, 2019

0.50
0.66

1.16
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwisc)

25. Revenue from operations

Sale of products - traded goods
Sale of services
Other operating revenue - rental income

Total

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March,
31 March, 2020 2019
15,112.14 14,468 31
319.95 35288
1,309.52 1,014.44
16,741.61 15,835.63

Tnd AS 115 also requires disclosure of major changes on account of revenue recognised in the reporting petiod from the contract liability balance at the beginning of

the period and other changes.

Receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities related to contracts with customers in relation to service and rental income:

Receivables
Trade receivables

Contract assets
Unbilled revenue

Contract liabilities (Advance from customer and deferred revenue)

Opening balance

Revenue recognized that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year

Closing balance

26. Other income

Interest income on:
- Bank deposits
- Security deposits
Forcign exchange gain (net)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other miscellaneous income

Total

27. Purchase of stock in trade

Traded goods

Total

28. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year
Ttaded goods (including stock in transit)

Packing tateral and accessories
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Traded goods (including stock in transit)
Packing matenial and accessores

Taotal

As at
31 March, 2020

724.91

203

1123
(1123)
281

For the year ended

As at
31 March, 2019

956.52

829

681
(6.81)
11.23

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
2324 19.76
136.68 116,59
5021 3447
074 138
1932 75.86
230.19 248.06

Tor the year ended

Fui the yeur ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
7,904.07 8,101.82
7,904.07 8,101.82
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
966.45 1,272.26
354 0.94
969.99 1,273.20
1,272.26 1,180.15
0.94 5.40
1,273.20 1,185.55
303.21 (87.65)
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Summary of significant accounting policics and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in % lacs, unless stated otherwisc)

29. Employee benefits expense

Salarics, wages, bonus, gratuity, compensated absences, allowances cte

Contribution to provident, ESI and other funds ctc.

Staff welfare expenses

Total

30. Finance costs

Interest expense on:
- Non-convertible redeemable preference shares (NCRPS)
- Term loans
- Leasc liabilitics
- Deposits
- Others

Total

31. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and cquipment (refer note 3(a))

Amortization of right-of-use assets (refer note 3(b))
Amottisation of intangible assets (refer note 3(d))

Total

32. Other expenses

Rent, Revenue sharing & CAM charges
Property, plant and equipment written off
Franchisee fees

Advertisement and sales promotion
Electricity and water

Communication

Travelling and conveyance

Bank charges

Rates and taxes

T.egal and professional (cefer note below)
Printing and stationery

Insurance

Impairemnent for loss allowance - debts
Bad debts

Repairs and maintenance - others
Freighit expenses

Warehouse Expenscs

Recruitment charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Total
Note:

Legal and professional includes payment to Statutory and Tax Auditors (excluding taxes):

- as auditor
- fot taxation matter
- for reimbursement of expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
1,201 .33 1,100 97
87.79 8428
18 84 2211
1,307.96 1,207.36
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
160.25 0.88
384.22
1,47221
3381 26.67
1.75 1.98
1,668.02 413,75
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
257.30 287.89
3,303.64 -
9.94 3.67
3,570.88 291.56

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
1,182.91 4,728 39
3.82
77057 819.25
31.05 37.19
154.28 157.49
7717 91.84
2897 38.50
90.36 106.60
889 36.19
124.67 115.41
418 592
11.39 10.67
4.41 913
6.14 422
58.31 72,52
52.06 3718
1.44
= 1.27
284.38 302.74
2,891,18 6,578.33
450 11.00
0.50 11.96
0.88
5.00 23.84
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated othenvise)
33 Tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year

Total current tax expense (a)

Deferred tax

Increase in deferred tax assets

Total deferred tax benefit (b)

Total income tax expense (a+b)*
*Comprises of :-

Total tax credit as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Tax expense on Other Comprehensive Income

34, Earnings per share

(Loss) / Profit after tax
Nominal value per share (%)

Weighted average number of equity shares (ot basic and diluted carnings per share

Add: weighted average number of potential equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shates for diluted eamings per share

Earnings per share (in %) (Basic and diluted)

(\/

f}:ﬁr'.i’.-

‘-—._—-."“-‘
TR

pckiLisr 4670 intentionally left blank)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
87.54 479.47
87.54 479.47
87.54 479.47
8205 48101
549 (1.54)

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
(591.47) 59.53
10.00 10.00
4144 41.44
41.44 41.44
(1427 144
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(Allamounts in T lacs, unless stated othenwise)

35. Related party disclosures under Ind AS-24

(a) List of Related Parties and nature of relationship where control exists

Name of Related Party
FFuture Retail Limited

TNST Retail Private Limited
Welcome Retail Prvate Limited

Entity able to exercise significant inflluence
Future Consumer Limited

Future Supply Chain Solutions Limited

Fonterra Future Diary Private Limited

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited

Future Specialty Retail Limited

Retail Light Techniques Tndia Ltd

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited

Directors

Mz Sunil Maneri

Mt Rajan Malhotra Sushil

Mr. Virendra Mansukhlal Samani
Mr. Vijai Singh Dugar

Mr Mayank Arora

Mr Ritesh Raja

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sunil Mantd

Mr Ajit Singh Chhiller

Mrs. Surbhi Bansal

Ar. Mukul Kumar Jain

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Mers, Rita Mantri
Mes. Shilpi Jain

Nature of Relationship
Holding company
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Managing Dircctor (w-e.f 01 Oct 2018)
Dircctor (upto 02 Dec 2019)
Diccctor (we f 11 May 2018)
Director (we f 08 May 2019)
Director (w.c £ 08 May 2019)
Director (w.c f 27 Dec 2019)

Chicf Excecutive Officer

Company Secretary (till 13 Dec 2019)
Company Secretary (w.c.f 06 Feb 2020)
Chief Financial Officer(w e f 08 NMay 2019)

Wifc of Mt Sunil Mantri
Wife of Mt. Mukul Kumar Jain

a) The following transactions were carried out with KMP and relative of KMP in the ordinary course of business:-

Description

Post emplo
Me. Sunil Mantr

Mr Mukul Kumar Jain
Salaries, wages and bonus
Mz Sunil Maneri
Me. Mukul Kunar Jain
Mrs, Surbhi Bansal
Other long term benefits - Leave encashiment
M. Sunil Mantri
Mr Mukul Kumar Jain
ir £ sitin,
Mr Virendra Mansukhlal Samani
Mr.Ritesh Raja
Mt Rajan Malhotra Sushil
Mr Mayank Arora
Mr Vijay Singh Dugur
Purchase ol services
Mors. Ritu Manta
Mrs Shilpi Jain

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Key managerial personnel and Relatives of key

managerial personnel

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
1.09 049
0.17
101.35 4246
17.13
1.06
5.58
029
030 020
010
030 020
030
030
252 126
144
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(Al amounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwisc)

b) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:-

Particulars

i) Purchase of traded goods‘
Future Retail Limited

Future Consumner Limited
TNSI Retail Private Limited

ii) Sale ofgoods.
TNSI Retail Private Limited

iii) Sale of Property, plant and equipment.
TNST Retail Private Litnited

iv) Purchase of Property, plant and equipment-
TNSI Retail Private Limited
Retail Light Techniques India Led

v) Service and rental income”
Future Retail Limited

TNSI Retail Private Limited

Future Consumer Limited

Fonterra Future Diary Private Limited
Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited
Tuture Specialty Retail Limited

vi) Interest exp on 7% C lative NCRPS
Future Retail Limited

vii) Service and Rent expense.

I'uture Retail Limited

Welcome Retail Private Limited

Future supply chain solutions Ltd

Future Generali India Insurance Company Limited
Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited

viii) Reimb of exp received
TNSI Retail Private Limited
Welcome Retail Private Limited

ix) Busi d —

Future Retail Limited

x) Business advances repaid
Future Retail Limited

xi) 7% Cumulative NCRPS
Future Retail Limited

xii) Security deposit paid
Welcome Retail Private Limited

xiii) Sccurity deposit received
Future Retail Limited

Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited
Future Specialty Retail Limited

xiv) Corporate guarantee issued
Welcome Retail Private Limited

Transactions as disclosed above is excluding GST.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended
31 March, 2020

66.83
84.27
3,216.10

14473

781

27210
291.67
691
0.63
2762
56.96

160.25

310m
1,506.25
2274
7.89
10.60

118.16
30921

107.42
1354
13.96

Year ended
31 March, 2019

4428
97.06
3,190.79

11016

138.00
31500
413

1372
2829

087

2529
1,437.03
14.82
6.30

96.22
230.04

3,926.01
3,926.01
3,400 00

7839

27.72

59272
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in  lacs, unless stated otherwise)

c) Balances at the end of year:-

Particulars . it

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
TNSI Retail Private Limited
“T'rade recervables 20044 62876
Investment in equity shares 270.00 270.00
Welcome Retail Private Limited
Investment in cquity shares 255 255
Securty deposit paid 36056 360.56
Advance to supplier 7805
Trade payables 16.65 651
Cormporate guarantees provided 1,202.67 1,202.67
Future Consumer Ltd.
Trade payables (nct) 249 5648
Future Supply Chain Solutions Led.
Trade payables 4010 1325
Future Retail Limited
Trade ceceivables (net) 14443 59.25
Security deposit received 13514 2772
Future Lifestyle Fashions Limited
Trade payables(net) 063
Security deposit received 1354
Future Specialty Retail Limited
Trade receivables (net) 1078 18.16
Secunty deposit received 13.96
Retail Light Techniques India Ltd
Trade payables 0.61
KMP
Post eonpployment benelis - gty
M. Sunil Mantri 14.18 0.49
Mt Mukul Kumar Jain 330 -
Ohher Tomgr benm benehits
Mr. Suni Mantd >.08 5.58
Me.Mukul Kumar Jain 1.18
Remunenition
Mt Sunil Mantri 3.61 -
Me.Mukul Kumar Jain 1.40 -

* Corporate guarantees has been provided by the Company on behalf of Welcome Retail Private Limited to Airports of Authority of India (AAT). The outstanding
balance as on 31 March 2020 ¥ 1,202.67 (31 March 2019 ¥ 1,202.67)

(This space bas been intentionally left blunik)
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(Al amounts in X lacs, unless stated otherwise)
36. Fair value measurements

“The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and fmancial Tabilities:

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
EVPL  EVOCI Amortised FVPL EVOCT Amortised
cosl cosl
Financial assets
Investments 272,55 - 272.55
Loans 1,553.52 - 137274
Cash and cash equivalents - 129.05 23352
Trade receivables 72491 95652
Margin money deposits 24845 27270
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 374.25
Other receivable 5873 [N
Total financial assets - - 330L46 - - 3,174.14
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 139292 1,232.67
Sccurity deposits 378.63 286 05
Trade payables - 1,807.69 - 2,049.40
Employce telated payables - 122 60 - 108 64
Capatal creditors - - 69,51 - - 11.11
Other payables - - 537 * - 37018
Total financial liabilities - - 3,776.72 - - AMI5E.05

Note:
The management asscssed that carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities, carded at amortised cost, are approximately equal to their fair values at respective balance sheet
dates and do not significantly vary from the tespective amounts in the balance sheet

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Each class of asscts and Habilities measured at fais value in the balance shect are grouped into three Jevels of a fair value hiccarchy. The three levels are defined based in the observability of
significant nputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1 hieracchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed traded mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds ace reported using the closing NAV

Level 2: The fair value of financial istrunents that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: Tf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration
and indemnification asset included in level 3.

There has been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended 31 Maech 2020 & 31 Macch 2019.

Financial aseets and liabilities measured at fair value- recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 Maich, 2020
Tinancial assets & - - -
Financial habilities - - - -

As at 31 March, 2019

Financial assets
Financial Labilities

(This space bas been intentionally left blunk)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(Allamounts in T lacs, unless stated orherwise)
37. Financial risk management

A. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard continuity as a going concern, provide appropriate return Lo sharcholders and maintin a cost efficient
capital structure. The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of an annual budget and a five year plan, including, for working capital, capital
mvestment in stores and technology. The Company’s funding requirements are met through intemal accruals and a combination of both long-term and short-term
borrowings

The Company monitors capital on the basis of total debt to total equity on a perodic basis “The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Capital As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Long teem borrowings (mcluding current maturitics) 1,392.92 1,232.67
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (129.05) (233 52)
Total debt 1,263.87 999.15
Equity share capital 41442 41442
Other cquity (1,030.14) 1,494.56
Total equity (615.72) 1,908.98
Gearing ratio (2.05) 0.52

In order to achicve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital durting the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

B. Financial risk management

A wide nange of asks may affect the Company’s busincss and operational / financial performance. The risks that could have significant influence on the Company are
market risk and liquidity nsk The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and sets out policies for managing these risks and monitors suitable actions taken by management
to minimise potential adverse effects of such risks on the Company’s operational and financial pecfoomance

B.1 Market risk :

Market Risk 15 the risk that changes in macket place could affect the future cash flows to the Company. The market risk for the Company arises pamarily from interest rate
ask, curcency risk and product price risk

i) Interest risk: Interest rate is the sisk that the faic value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates Company's
financial habilities comprises mainly of lease liabilitics, loans and advances from rclated parties and security deposits, although company has no such interest bearing
financial liabilitiy. However, there ace not exposed to sisk of fluctuation in market interest rte as the rates ace fixed at the time of contract/ agreement and do not change
for any market fluctuation and hence, the company does not have any interest beating financial liability as on 31st Macch, 2020

ii) Product price risk: In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its retail product lines. Product price increases which
are not in line with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the business/retail sales volumes. Tn such a scenario, the risk is managed by offering judicious
product discounts to retail customers to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its vendors for purchase price rebates such that the eebates substantially absorb the
product discounts offered to the retail customers. This helps the Company protect itself from significant product margin losses. This mechanism also works in case of a
downturn in the retail sector, although overall volumes would get affected

iii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primaily to the tranchise fees payable by the Company as on year end

Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure in GBI:

31March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
GBP INR in lacs GBP INR in lacs

Financial liabilitics - Trade payables 620,406 92 57376 704,646.19 636.15

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in GBP exchange rate, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s
profit before tax 15 due to changes in the fair value of monctary assets and liabilities

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Increase by 500 Decrease by 500
basis points basis points

Increase/ (decrease)

Tor the year ended 31 March 2020 31.02 (31.02)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 35.23 (35.23)

ﬂ/
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(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated othenwisc)

B.2 Liquidity risk :

Liquidtty risk is a risk that the Company may not be able to meet 1ts financial obligations on a timely basis through its cash and cash cquivalents, and funds available by way

of committed credit facilitics from banks Management manages the liquidity risk by monitoring rolling cash flow forecasts and maturity profiles of financial asscts and

liabilities. This monitonng includes financial ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile (remaining period of contractual maturity at the balance sheet date) of the Company’s financial liabilitics based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows :-

As ac 31 March 2019

Borrowings (non current and current)
Trade payables

Employee related payables

Secunty deposits

Capital creditors

Other payables

As ac 31 March 2020

Borrowings (non current and current)
Lease habilities (non current and current)
Trade payables

Employee related payables

Secunity deposits

Capital creditors

Other payables

Between More than 5 .

Less than 1 year Carrying amounts
1 and 5 years years

1,232.67 1,232.67
2,049.40 2,049 40
108 64 108.6+4
3200 244.63 9.42 286.05
11.11 11.11
370.18 37018
2,571.33 41.63 1,242.00 4,058.05
1,39292 1,39292
3,29293 9,71526 22021 13,228 40
1,807.69 - 1,807.69
122,60 12260
85.03 293.60 378.63
69.51 69.51
537 - - 537
5,383.13 10,008.86 1,613.13 17,005.12

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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B.3 Credit risk

1) Credit nisk anises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company peniodically assesses the
financial rehiability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account reccivables
Individual cisk limits are also set accordingly

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting pedod. To assess whether therc is a significant increase in credit nisk, the Company compates the gisk of default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Company considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information

As at 31 March, 2020
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount loss net of
impairment
Investments 27255 - 27255
Loans 1,55352 - 1,553.52
Cash and cash cquivalents 129.05 = 12905
Trade recervables
Not due =
Overdue ( 0-12 months) 692,89 13.54 679.35
Overdue ( more than 12 months) 45.56 45 56
Margin money deposits 24845 24845
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 37425 37425
Other receivable 5873 5873
Total financial assets 3,375.00 13.54 3,361.46
As at 31 March, 2019
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount loss net of
impairment
provisions
Tnvestments 27255 - 272,55
Loans 1,372.74 = 1,37274
Cash and cash equivalents 233.52 - 23352
Trade receivables
Not due 40.02 4002
Overdue ( 0-12 months) 921 41 913 91228
Overdue (more than 12 months) 422 422
Margin money deposits 27270 - 27270
Other receivable 66.11 66.11
Total financial assets 3,183.27 9.13 3,174.14

(Lhis spare bas been infentionally lefi blunk)
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38. Employee beuefits
Employee benefit obligations

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Granuty 7016 7114 050 3393 3443
Leave Encashment 5840 5977 066 2966 a2
Total employee benefit abligations 128 56 130.91 1.16 63.59 64.75

1. Defined benefits plans - Gratuity

The graruity liability acises on ecticement, withdeawal, cesignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid iability is caleulated on the basis of Gfteen days salary (ie last drawn hasic salary) for cach

completed year of service subject to completion of five years service

2, Other loug-term benefits - Leave Encashment

Employees of the Company are entitled (o aceumulale their carned/ privilege leave up tw e maximum of 90 days which is payable/ encasheble as per the pulicy on their separation

Paolicy for recognizing actuarial gains and losscs:

Actnacial gans and losses of defind henefit plan anising from experience adjustments and cffects of changes i uctvarial assumptions are immediately cecognized i other comprehensive mcome Risks
associated with the plan provisions ace actuavial risks These risks are interest rate risk, mortality cisk and salary risk.

(a) Balance sheet amounts- Gratuity and Leave Encashment

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Presentvalue of

Present value of

Particulars obligation- obligation-Leave
Gratuity Encashment
Balance as at 1st April 2018 29.26 17.93
Cucrent service cost 1261 1745
Interest expense/(income) 230 141
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1491 18.86
Resmeaswrements
Loss from change in financial assumptions 006 005
Espernence (gamns) (5.98 01
Total amount guised in other preh income 55492! 0.11
Benefit payments (3.83) {6.36)
Balance as at 31st March 2019 34.43 3032
Balance as at st April 2019 34.43 3032
Current service cost 1583 2241
Taterest expense/{income) 269 236
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 18.52 2477
Loss / (Gawn) from change in demographic assumptions 1042 003)
(Gain) /loss from change in financial assumptions L3 905
Experience losses 1074 i
Tatal amount recognised in other comprehensive incnme 2113 12.89
Benefit payments (2.95) (8.21)
Balance as at 316t March 2020 7114 59.77

e ot Lo plety dse

e ahove rlates to wnfunded pling ace as follows:

Particulars

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

As at As at

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

As at Asac
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Present value of funded

- 7114 3443 3977 3032
obligations
Unfunded Provision 71.14 34.43 59.77 30.32
(b) Assumptions:
1 Economic assumpiions

Gratuity Leave Encashment
Particulars As at Asat As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March. 2019 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019
gt rate By 7.86% 6.80% 7.86%
650% G650% 6 50% 650%

Salary growth rate

The discount rate is based on the prevailing marker yields of Indian govemment securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations
The salasy escalation rate is based on estimates of salacy increases, which takes into account mflation, promotion and other relevant factors




2 Demographic o
Gratuity “Leave Encashment
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

Kenrcinent age - 58 T 58 58 AR
Withdrawal rate, based
on age

18 to 30 Years 2% 240 2% 2%

30 to 45 Years 2% 2% 2% 2%

Above 45 years 1% 1% 1% 1%
Mortality Table TALMN (2012-2014) TALM (2006-2008) TALNL (2012-2014)  TALNL (2006 2008)

(c) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes ar the teporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumprions, holding other assumptions constant, would have aftected the defined henefit obligation by the amounrs
shown below

Impuct on defined benefit ohligation

Tarticulin Chunge in aysiinption I ! _:lm_ru\_r in i
As ac As at As at Asat Asac As at
31 Muarch; 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 Wlurch, 2020 31 Maech, 2019
FHycnmmt rate
Gratusty +/-100 basis points  +/-100 basis points 9.89) (552 1241 695
Leave Encashment +/-100 basis points  +/-100 basis points 91 4249 170 533

Salary growth rate
Gratuity +/-100 basis points  +/-100 basis points 1232 698 (10.00) (563)

Leave Encashment +/-100 basis ponts  +/-100 basis points 1162 535 [VRt)] 432

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown

{d) Weighted averape duration

Particulars 1year 2-5 years Mure than § vears Taral

3 Murch 2020

Defned benefir 231 3469 2448 6148
obligation

31 March 2019

Defined benefir 050 1034 2358 3442
obligation

Deraled mformation to the extent provided by the actuary in the acruarial cectificate has been included in the disclosure above

(¢) Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to 2 number of risks, the most significant of which arc detailed below:

Interest rate rigk: The present value of the defmed benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to macket yields of high quality corporate bonds. The estimated term of the
bonds is consistent with the estimated term of the defined benefit obligation and it is denommared in TNR A decrease in market yield on high quality cocporate bonds will increase the Company’s defined
benefit liability :

Mortality risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calelated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. A change in mortality rate will have a beacing on the
plan's labdity

Salary escalation risk: "The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants i futuce. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary
in future for plan participants from the rate of ncrease mn salary used to detemmine the present value of obligation will have a beanng on the plan's liability

Demographic risk: The Company has used cerrain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the lbility. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience tuming out to be worse
compared to the assumption

3. Defined contribution plans

The Company has also certain defined contabution plans Contnbutions arc made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of the basic salary as per regulations The contabutions are made to
& d provident fund admini: d by g of India_The obligations of the Company is limited tw the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligations The expense
recogruzed dunng the year towatds defined contabubon plan is ¥ 65 12 (31 March 2019 - 55 69)

(This space bas been intentionally lft blunk)




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
S

y of signifi ing policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(Ml amounts in T lacs, unless stared otherwisc)
39. Contingent liabilities, not acknowledged as debt, include;

As at
31 March, 2020

Particul —_
culars 31 March, 2019
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debis:

Disputed liabilitics not adjusted as expense in the accounts being in Appeal towards:

i Sales Tax 2096

it. Tncome Tax 1,728.12
Total 1,749.08 -
40. Lease

The Company has entered into lease arrangements for its warehouses, office premises etc

These leasing arrangements which are non-cancellable range between 3 to 10 yearson an avearage and are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutally agreeable terms

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applicd the standard to all lease contracts existing on Apadl 1, 2019 using the maodified retrospective
method and has taken the cumulative adjustments to retained camings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company has recorded the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use assct at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of intial application. Compatitives as at and for the year ended 31st
March,2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore will contine to be reported under accounting policies included as part of our Annual Report for the year ended
31st March,2019

On transition, the adopfion of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of use” assct of Rs 13,381.79 Lacs. and a lease liability of Rs. 15,973 13 Lacs. The cumalative
effect of appyling the standard, amounting to Rs. 2,591.34 Lacs. was dcbited to remined eamings, nct of taxes The effect of this adoption is insignificant on profit before tax,
profit for the period and eamings per share. Tnd AS 116 will result in increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activites
on account of lease payments

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1st April, 2019 is 10.25%

1) Following are the changes in the carrying value of dght of use assets for the year ended 31st March,2020:-

Particulars eanendsd

31 March, 2020
Balance as on April 1,2019 13.381.79
Addition -
Deleton
Depreciation 330364
Balance as on March 31,2020 10,078.15

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization Expense in statement of Profit & Loss,

ii) The following is the break-up of current and non-current leasc liabilities as at 31st March, 2020:-

Particulars Year ended

31 March, 2020
Current lease liabilities 3,292.93
Non-current lease habilities 9.93547
Total 13,228.40

ii) The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st Match, 2020:-

Particulam Yeurended

31 March, 2020
Balance at the beginning, 15,973.13
Addiion
Deletion
Finance cost accrued durng the period 147221
Payment of lease liabilities 4216 94
Total 13,228.40

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regards to its lease Liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet obligations to lease liabiliites as and when they
fall due

iv) Reconciliation for the effects of the transition on Statement of Profit and loss for year ended 31st March, 2020 as follows:-

Changes due to

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March, 2020 ::‘c’r:‘:s :16 / 31 March, 2020
Comparable basis (decrease) (As Reported)
Rent including lease rentals 5,399 85 (4,216.94) 1.182.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 267.23 3.303.64 3,570.88
Fimance costs 19581 147221 1.668.02
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional item and bax (114.61) 558 91 (6_73_5)_

L
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwise)
41 Deferred tax

(i) Effective tax reconciliation (ETR)

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Accounting loss (673.52) (421.48)
Applicable tax rate 26% 26%
Expected ux expense (175.12) (109.58)
Adjusunents;
Defeered taves now recognized on unused tas depreciation and temporary difterences (refer note (i) below) (117 33) 87761
Recognition of Right-of-use assets and lease liabilibies (81907)
Deferred tax not created on unused tax losses, pursuant to provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 (refer note (i) below) (503 40)
Other differences (432)
Actual tax expense/(credit) 761.28 (479.47)

Note 1: As per Finance Act, 2019, the income tax cates for domestic companies whose turnover has not exceeded TNR 250 ceores in year ended 31 March 2017, the applicable rate of income

tax shall be 25% plus applicable cesses

(ii) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Lease Liability 343939
Employec benefits 5220 3851
Impairment foc doubtful debts and advances 352 237
Difference between accounting base and tax basc of property, plant and equipment 23995 22241
Financial assets and liabilitics at amortised cost 763 957
Unused tax depreciation 11839 206.61
Unused tax losses
A 610 47947
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Right of use assets (2,62032)
(262039 -
Less: Deferred tax assets restricted up to deferred tax liability -
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,240.76 479.47
Note 2: M in ab ioned deferred tax assets and liahilitica
Recognised . Recognised
Particulars As on in statement R:.:t;gt::ed As on in statement | Recognised in Ason
a 1April 2018 | of profit and reserves 3st March, 2019 | of profitand | other reserves | 31st March, 2020
loss loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred wx assets
Employee benefits 2754 943 154 3851 19.18 549
Impaiment for doubtful debts and advances 1742 (15.05) 237 115
Diffceence between accounting base and tax base of
propetly, plautaud equipment 20163 2078 22241 1754 23995
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost 957 957 194 7.63
Unused tax depreciation 176.61 30.00 20661 (8822) 11839
Unused tax losses 503 40 {503 40)
Lease liabilities 3,439 39 3,439 39
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost (4899) 4899
Right of use assets (2,62032) (2,620 32
Deferred tax assets (ne) 877.61 (399.68) 1.54 47947 766.78 (5.49) 1,240.76
Less: Deferred tax assets restricted up to deferred tax
liability (®77.61) 87761
Total 477.93 1.54 479.47 766.78 {5.49) 1,240.76

The Company follows Indian Accounting Standard 12 "Income Taxes", specified under Section 133 of the Act During the year ended 31 Macch 2020, the Company has recognised the deferted
tax assets on all deductible temporary differences and unused tax depreciation - based on the analysis of taxable income and futuce business projections and operations made by the
management, to the extent it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporacy differences and unused tax depreciation can be utilised Flowever,
such probability regarding futute available raxable profits does not exist as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018,

(This space has heen intentionally lft blank)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March, 2020

(All amounts in T lacs, unless stated otherwise)

42. Operating Segments
In the opinion of the management, there is only one reporting sepment "Retail Sales” as envisaged by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”. The Company is operating only in India and there
is no other significanc geographical segment,

43, The Company cansies out physical verification to cover all its retail stores and storage units during the year: Shortfall identitied duwing such physical verifieation is adjusted for cach
store/unit at the relevant time duting the year after conclusion of such exercise. Such write-oft pertains to damage goods, short/excess inventory, misappropriation ol inventory etc. During
the year, the Company has created provision for inventory write off amounting ¥ 104.78 (31 March 2019: X 65 58).

44, Disclosute under the Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act")

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 Match 2019

i) The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach
accounting yeat
-Principal Amaunt 56.93 27.04

-Interest thereon, included in finanee cost 1.75 1.98

ii) The amount of 1ntcrest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micio, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplies beyond the appuointed day
during each accounting vear

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterptise Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amuuni ol interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year; and

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium nterprise Development Act, 2006

"T'he above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Fnterprises has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company

45. The SARS-CoV-2 virus responsible for COVID-19, which has been declared a Global pandemic by the World Lealth Organization, continues to spread across the globe, and has
contributed to a significant decrease in global and local economic activides, and most of the governments including the Indian Governmenr, have announced the strict lockdowns across
their respective countries as one of the strongest measuses to contain the spread of the virus. As at the date of approval of these financial statements, it is estimated that the impact of
Caovid-19 on the financial statements is not significant. Lixtent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company's future activities and financial results will depend oo furure
developments which are highly uncertain, thetefore the impact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial

statements.

46. The Previous year's figures have been re-grouped/ re-classifed wherever considered necessary,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

‘This is the Balance Shect referred to in our report of even dare. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
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